
 

 

 
 
Lone Tree City Council Agenda 
Tuesday, March 4, 2014 

 
Meeting Location:  City Council Meeting Room, Lone Tree Civic Center, 8527 Lone Tree Parkway. 
Meeting Procedure: The Lone Tree City Council and staff will meet in a public Study Session at 4:30 p.m.  At 
6:00 p.m. and following the meeting, if necessary, the Council Meeting will adjourn and convene in Executive 
Session. If an Executive Session is not necessary, Council will recess for dinner. The Regular Session will be 
convened at 7:00 p.m. Study Sessions and Regular Sessions are open to the public, Executive Sessions are not. 
Comments from the public are welcome at these occasions: 1. Public Comment (brief comments on items not 
scheduled for a public hearing) 2. Public Hearings. Contact the City Clerk if special arrangements are needed to 
attend (at least 24 hours in advance).

 
4:30 pm Study Session Agenda 

1. Commission, Boards & Committee Appointment Process  
2. Ord 14-XX, AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO MODIFY THE DISTANCE 

RESTRICTION ON APPLICATIONS FOR CERTAIN NEW LIQUOR LICENSES, 
PURSUANT TO THE COLORADO LIQUOR CODE 

 
6:00pm Executive Session Agenda 

1. Roll Call 
2. Executive Session 

 
7:00pm Regular Session Agenda 

 
3. Opening of Regular Meeting/Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Amendments to the Agenda and Adoption of the Agenda 
5. Conflict of Interest Inquiry 
6. Public Comment 
7. Announcements 
8. Presentations 
9. Consent Agenda 

a. Minutes of the February 18, 2014 Regular Meeting 
b. Claims for the Period of February 10-24, 2014 

10. Community Development 
a. Approval of Commonwealth Heights Multi-Family SIP #SP13-52R 

11. Council Comments 
12. Adjournment 

 
 

03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 1 of 64



 

City Council Minutes Page 1 of 4 February 18, 2014 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
HELD 

February 18, 2014 
 

A regular meeting of the Council of the City of Lone Tree was held on Tuesday, 
February 18, 2014, at 7:00 p.m., at the Lone Tree City Council Chambers located 
at 8527 Lone Tree Parkway, Lone Tree, Colorado 80124. 
  

 
Attendance  
  In attendance were: 
 

James D. Gunning, Mayor 
Jacqueline Millet, Mayor Pro Tem 
Harold Anderson, Council Member 
Kim Monson, Council Member  
Susan Squyer, Council Member 
 
Also in attendance were: 

 
Seth Hoffman, City Manager 
Jennifer Pettinger, City Clerk 
Chief Jeffery Streeter, Lone Tree Police Department 
Steve Hebert, Community Development Director 
Neil Rutledge, Assistant City Attorney, White, Bear and Ankele, P.C. 
John Cotten, Public Works Director, TST, Inc. 
Kristin Baumgartner, Finance Director  
   

 
Call to Order 
  Mayor Gunning called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m., and observed that a  
  quorum was present. 

  
 
Pledge of Allegiance  
  Mayor Gunning led those assembled in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 
    
 
Amendments to the Agenda 

There were no amendments to the agenda.  
______ 

 
Conflict of Interest 

There was no conflict of interest. 
______ 

03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 2 of 64



 

City Council Minutes Page 2 of 4 February 18, 2014 

 
Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 
______  
  

Announcements 
Caroline Hauer, Youth Commissioner, gave Council an update on the Youth 
Commission. 
 
Mayor Gunning announced upcoming events. 
______ 
  

Consent Agenda 
Mayor Gunning noted the following items on the Consent Agenda, which 
consisted of: 

 
§ Minutes of the February 4, 2014 Regular Meeting 
§ Claims for the period of January 27 – February 10, 2014 
§ Treasurer’s Report December 2013 
§ Approval of Household Hazardous Waste Collection Contract Amendment 

 
Council Member Squyer moved, Council Member Anderson seconded, to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  The motion passed unanimously. 
   

 
Administrative Matters 

Public Hearing: Ordinance 14-01, AMENDING MUNICIPAL CODE 
PROVISIONS RELATED TO MARIJUANA OFFENSES DUE TO 
PASSAGE OF COLORADO CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT 64 
(Second Reading) 

   
Mayor Gunning opened the public hearing at 7:07 p.m.  
 
Neil Rutledge, Assistant City Attorney, introduced the item.  
 
Mayor Gunning opened the public hearing for comment at 7:15 p.m.  
 
Dave Smith, Owner of Go-Putt, asked about the prohibition for someone 
consuming marijuana at a business. Mr. Rutledge explained that a business is 
considered to be open and public and marijuana consumption is prohibited. 
 
The public hearing was closed at 7:17 p.m. 
 
Council Member Anderson moved, Mayor Pro Tem Millet seconded, to approve 
Ordinance 14-01, AMENDING MUNICIPAL CODE PROVISIONS 
RELATED TO MARIJUANA OFFENSES DUE TO PASSAGE OF 
COLORADO CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT 64 on Second Reading.  

03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 3 of 64



 

City Council Minutes Page 3 of 4 February 18, 2014 

The motion passed unanimously. 
  
Public Hearing: Ordinance 14-02, SUBMITTING A CHARTER 
AMENDMENT TO CITY REGISTERED ELECTORS AT THE MAY 6, 2014 
REGULAR ELECTION, AMENDING THE CITY OF LONE TREE HOME 
RULE CHARTER TO REQUIRE A MAJORITY VOTE FOR THE 
ELECTION OF MAYOR AND PROVIDING FOR RUNOFF ELECTIONS 
FOR MAYOR (Second Reading) 

   
Mayor Gunning opened the public hearing at 7:18 p.m.  
 
Neil Rutledge, Assistant City Attorney, introduced the item.  
 
Mayor Gunning opened the public hearing for comment at 7:19 p.m.  
 
Marie Hauer, 9659 Kemper Drive, asked for the Ordinance to be explained. 
Mayor Gunning explained the current voting process and how it would change if 
the ballot measure was passed. 
 
Doug MacGregor, 7434 Indian Wells Cove, asked about how a runoff would be 
handled. Mayor Gunning explained. 
 
The public hearing was closed at 7:22 p.m. 
 
Council Member Monson moved, Mayor Pro Tem Millet seconded, to approve 
Ordinance 14-02, SUBMITTING A CHARTER AMENDMENT TO CITY 
REGISTERED ELECTORS AT THE MAY 6, 2014 REGULAR 
ELECTION, AMENDING THE CITY OF LONE TREE HOME RULE 
CHARTER TO REQUIRE A MAJORITY VOTE FOR THE ELECTION 
OF MAYOR AND PROVIDING FOR RUNOFF ELECTIONS FOR 
MAYOR on Second Reading.  The motion passed unanimously. 
  
Resolution 14-04, CALLING FOR THE REGULAR BIENNIAL CITY 
ELECTION FOR THE CITY OF LONE TREE 
  
Jennifer Pettinger, City Clerk, introduced the item.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Millet moved, Council Member Squyer seconded, to approve 
Resolution 14-04, CALLING FOR THE REGULAR BIENNIAL CITY 
ELECTION FOR THE CITY OF LONE TREE. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
  
Resolution 14-05, REAPPOINTING REPRESENTATIVES TO THE 
DOUGLAS COUNTY HOUSING PARTNERSHIP 

 
Seth Hoffman, City Manager, introduced the item.  
 

03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 4 of 64



 

City Council Minutes Page 4 of 4 February 18, 2014 

Council Member Squyer moved, Council Member Monson seconded, to approve 
Resolution 14-05, REAPPOINTING REPRESENTATIVES TO THE 
DOUGLAS COUNTY HOUSING PARTNERSHIP (Anderson & Russell). 
The motion passed unanimously. 
  

 
Adjournment  

There being no further business, Mayor Gunning adjourned the meeting at  
7:37 p.m. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
       
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 5 of 64



 

 

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Project Summary 
 

 
Date:   March 4, 2014 City Council Meeting 
 
 
Project Name: RidgeGate Section 15, Filing 11, 2nd Amendment 
   (Commonwealth Heights) 
 
 
Location: Located south of RidgeGate Parkway, between Commonwealth 

Street and Bellwether Lane in RidgeGate. 
 
 
Project Type / #: Site Improvement Plan (SIP), Project #SP13-52R 
 
 
Staff Contacts: Steve Hebert, Community Development Department Director 
 Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner 
 
  
Meeting Type: Public Meeting.   
 
 
Summary of Request:   

Approval of an SIP for a four-story multi-family residential building 
consisting of 190 multi-family units and 8,210 square feet of ground 
floor retail on 3.25 acres 

 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation: 
 Approval, subject to final approval by Public Works. 
 
 
Suggested Action:  
 Approval, subject to final approval by Public Works. 
 
  

03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 6 of 64



Commonwealth Heights (Arcadia) SIP 
Project File #SP13-52R 
 

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
TO:  Mayor Gunning and City Council 
 
FROM: Steve Hebert, Community Development Director 
  Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner 
 
DATE: February 26, 2014 
 
FOR:  March 4, 2014, City Council Meeting 
 
SUBJECT: RidgeGate Section 15, Filing 11, 2nd Amendment 
 Site Improvement Plan (Commonwealth Heights), Project #SP13-52R 
  
Owner/Representative:       
Arcadia Holdings at RidgeGate, LLC 
Lisa Evans 
8390 E Crescent Parkway #650  
Greenwood Village, CO  80111       
 
 
Planning Commission Meeting Date:    February 11, 2014 
City Council Meeting/Hearing Date:      March 4, 2014  
   
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

A. REQUEST: 
 

Approval of a Site Improvement Plan (SIP) for a four-story multi-family 
residential building consisting of 190 multi-family units and 8,210 square 
feet of ground floor retail on 3.25 acres.    
 
 

B. LOCATION: 
 
The property is located along RidgeGate Parkway and is bounded by the 
following uses: 
  
North: RidgeGate Parkway (the undeveloped property north of 

RidgeGate Parkway is owned by Charles Schwab but there 
are no development plans proposed at this point for that 
property) 

03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 7 of 64



Commonwealth Heights (Arcadia) SIP 
Project File #SP13-52R 
 

East:    Miramont Apartments 
South:  Regency Apartments 
West:    Belvedere Townhomes  
 
 

C. SITE CHARACTERISTICS: 
 

The property slopes approximately 26 feet from a high point at the south 
east corner to a low point on the northwest corner, and contains no 
significant natural features or vegetation.   
 
 

D. SERVICE PROVIDERS:   
 
Water:   Southgate Water District 
Sanitation:  Southgate Sanitation District 
Police:  Lone Tree Police 
Fire:   South Metro Fire Rescue Authority 
Special Districts: Rampart Range Metropolitan District 

 
 

E. BACKGROUND: 
 

A Site Improvement Plan for the property was previously approved by City 
Council for 160 multi-family units (with 7,100 sq. ft. of retail below) in 2006, 
but that project was never constructed.  The building size proposed is 
comparable with that approved in 2006, but the number of one-bedroom 
units has increased with this application. 
 
This development has been reviewed and approved by the RidgeGate 
Design Review Committee (DRC).   

 
 
F. DESCRIPTION: 

 
Zoning.  The property is zoned PD or Planned Development.  The specific 
site is located in a Residential Mixed-Use Planning Area.  The zoning 
allows for multi-family housing, as well as retail/commercial use.   
 
Access.   Access into the site for parking purposes is afforded along 
Bellwether Lane and Commonwealth Street.  Pedestrian access into the 
building is located along RidgeGate Parkway and Halstead Lane. 
 
Parking.   The building wraps internal structured parking, eliminating the 
visual impact of what otherwise would be a large surface parking lot.  The 
proposed parking exceeds the minimum requirements of the RidgeGate 

03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 8 of 64



Commonwealth Heights (Arcadia) SIP 
Project File #SP13-52R 
 

 

Residential West Village Sub Area Plan by 14 spaces.  Parking for all 
residents is accommodated on site, with parking for guests both internal 
and on the adjoining streets. The upper deck level parking and the surface 
parking located in the northeast courtyard will be available for retail and 
commercial uses, as will on-street parking. Retail/commercial/residential 
parking is calculated using the shared parking formula in the City Zoning 
Code. 

 
Building Design.  The use of building colors, textures and materials 
(primarily brick and stucco) are complementary to development on all 
sides and are in keeping with the RidgeGate Sub-Area plan standards and 
the City’s Design Guidelines.    
 
The proposed building mass and form, at four stories, is similar in context 
with the Miramont Apartments to the east and the Regency Apartments to 
the south.  The Belvedere Townhomes to the west are two to three stories 
in height.                                                                             

 
Variations in building form, wall planes - both horizontal and vertical - 
window patterns, balconies, and building materials are proportionate to the 
building scale and combine to form a cohesive composition.  Special 
architectural treatments are found at the corners of RidgeGate Parkway 
and Commonwealth Street and RidgeGate Parkway and Bellwether Lane, 
with the extensive use of brick. 
 
The use of dentil decorative features in certain areas and articulated roof 
forms, create a “top” to the building.  The use of canopies, storefront style 
entry doors, sconce lighting, and pavement treatments highlight mid-block 
entries. Arched entries to the garages on Bellwether Lane and 
Commonwealth Street highlight these entries.   
  
A high degree of transparency is found along the retail/commercial area 
along RidgeGate Parkway with the use of glass storefronts, enlivening the 
pedestrian experience. 
 
All rooftop mechanical equipment is screened by the roof ridge and 
parapets 
 
Landscaping.  All on-street landscaping includes species that are 
adaptive to this environment, are generally low-water demand, and are in 
keeping with other landscaping treatments in the area.   
 
The applicant is coordinating closely with the Rampart Range Metropolitan 
District in the streetscape design.  Commonwealth Street streetscape will 
be completed with this project. 
 

03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 9 of 64



Commonwealth Heights (Arcadia) SIP 
Project File #SP13-52R 
 

 

Amenities such as benches, planters, bike racks, and trash receptacles 
are proposed along the street, and complement the building architecture 
and surrounding streetscape.   
 
Lighting.  On-street lighting includes the acorn-type lighting along 
RidgeGate Parkway, more contemporary-style pedestrian lighting along 
Commonwealth Street (consistent with what is on the west side of 
Miramont Apartments).  Taller street lighting is located in strategic areas 
for safety purposes.  Sconce lighting is located along the retail/commercial 
area along RidgeGate Parkway, and at key areas including entryways 
helping to highlight these important areas.   
 
Snow Storage.  Snow storage areas are located on level two within the 
parking fields, and on level one for the pool deck.   
 
Trash Collection.  Trash enclosures are located within the parking 
garage on level one and level two.  The management will offer a valet 
service for trash pickup and recycling.  There is also a trash enclosure for 
the retail/commercial development internal to the building along 
Commonwealth Street.  Because trash enclosures are internal to the site, 
no trash enclosure walls or treatments are required. 
 
Local Park Dedication requirements for this project are satisfied by a 
“credit” associated with RidgeGate’s dedication of land for Prairie Sky 
Park, as outlined in a memorandum of understanding between the City of 
Lone Tree and Coventry Development.  
 
Public Art.  There is no public art requirement as the property is less than 
5 acres.   
 
 

G. PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW: 
 
The following has been taken directly from the minutes of the Planning 
Commission meeting held on February 11, 2014: 
 
 Ms. Jennifer Drybread introduced the application as a request for 
approval of a Site Improvement Plan (SIP) for a four-story multi-family 
residential building consisting of 190 multi-family units and 8,210 square 
feet of ground floor retail on 3.25 acres. The property is located in 
RidgeGate, directly west of Miramont Apartments. She presented an 
overview of the request, the project location, key and key elements of the 
project.  
 
Ms. Drybread indicated the project had been referred to out to various 
agencies including the RidgeGate West Village Community Association, 

03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 10 of 64



Commonwealth Heights (Arcadia) SIP 
Project File #SP13-52R 
 

 

which did not have any comments.  She closed her presentation by 
indicating the project is in conformance with the Site Improvement Plan 
requirements of the Lone Tree City Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Code, 
RidgeGate Residential West Village Sub-Area plan and stated that staff 
recommends approval, subject to final approval by Public Works.  
 
Ms. Lisa Evans, representing Arcadia Holdings at RidgeGate, the 
developer of the proposed project, introduced herself.  She indicated that 
this is a project that would be built to accommodate condominiums or 
apartments and retail.  She considers it a great infill site that will help 
complete the neighborhood.  She talked about the RidgeGate Parkway 
façade and the quality of the living experience in that the units will be 
wider but shallower to maximize window exposure.  She discussed the 
proposed secure parking, the clubhouse and other amenities in the 
building.  She noted the proximity to adjacent uses and the opportunities 
to connect to the walkable neighborhood including the Charles Schwab 
campus, Sky Ridge Medical Center and the Arts Center.  Ms. Evans 
mentioned briefly the urban, timeless feel of the architecture and the intent 
to create a lasting style.   
 
Mr. Rich Muller, architect with EV Studio, addressed the Commission.  He 
talked about how they thought about this project relative to its 
surroundings and said they took inspiration from some of the classic 
beautiful buildings in Lower Downtown Denver.  He described in more 
detail some of the architectural renderings and the site plan.  He described 
how the interior parking structure will work as well as each of the various 
levels.  He discussed how they intend to accommodate snow storage in 
the garage.   
 
Mr. John Olsen, landscape architect and Principal with EV Studio, talked 
about the landscape plan including the tree lawns around the building, 
wider sidewalks on Commonwealth and RidgeGate Parkway, and the 
locations of trees, grasses and other plant materials. 
 
Commissioner Steele said he appreciated the presentation and the quality 
of the materials for review.  He asked how the height of this project 
compared to the surrounding properties, to understand the compatibility of 
heights.  Ms. Evans said this project will be very similar to the Miramont to 
the east and Regency to the south and will step up from the townhomes to 
the west.  Ms. Evans and Mr. Muller clarified the proposed height.  
Commissioner Steele asked for a clarification on the secured access to 
the parking and how guests would access that parking.  Ms. Evans 
indicated the lower level parking will be secured but the upper level 
parking in the courtyard will be available for guests and retail customers.  
Retail customers will also be able to park on the street.  Commissioner 
Steele asked for a clarification on how many parking spaces will be onsite 

03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 11 of 64



Commonwealth Heights (Arcadia) SIP 
Project File #SP13-52R 
 

 

versus on-street to ensure that resident parking was not accounted for on 
the street. Ms. Evans confirmed that.  
 
Commissioner Steele noted that a substantial proportion of the units will 
be one bedroom units and asked about that.  Ms. Evans indicated they 
believe there will be a demand for these single bedroom units given the 
proximity to Charles Schwab and Sky Ridge Medical Center.  She cited 
demographic trends referred to in the previous presentation and that this 
project fills a gap for urban professionals.  
 
Commissioner Steele asked about how the retail spaces will be served.  
Mr. Muller described the interior service hallway and delivery area. 
Commissioner Steele asked where the closest residential units will be to 
the retail. Mr. Muller indicated there would be residential units immediately 
above the retail space.  Commissioner Steele asked how the retail will be 
managed in a condo situation and if it will be for sale or for rent.  Ms. 
Evans said the retail space is being designed to be sold.  Commissioner 
Steele commented that there are often issues between HOAs and retail 
owners. Ms. Evans replied that she has experience with dealing with those 
issues successfully from other mixed-use projects she has been involved 
with. 
 
Commissioner Steele asked for a clarification about the bike storage and 
parking, noting that there is a potential for residents to store bikes on 
balconies.  Ms. Evans described the bike storage areas.  Commissioner 
Steele asked about the provision of electrical charging stations.  Ms. 
Evans said they considered that but are not including car charging stations 
but instead will be including a pet spa as an added amenity for residents.  
Commissioner Steele asked Mr. Jones who is responsible for snow 
plowing on RidgeGate Streets, noting concern for parked cars interfering 
with plow operations.  Mr. Jones indicated it’s a combination of contracts 
with the Rampart Range Metropolitan District or the City.  
 
Vice-Chair Sippel suggested that there be no parking permitted on the 
south side of Halstead Lane in consideration of plowing the streets during 
snow storms.  Mr. Hebert indicated that the City and RidgeGate are aware 
that parking demand will change over time and may need to be managed 
eventually. It will be monitored to see how it is being used, including 
parking for retail spaces in mixed-used buildings.  Commissioner Sippel 
appreciated that the issue was being considered.  
 
Commissioner Steele asked about the square footages of the units. Ms. 
Evans provided the breakdown based on number of bedrooms for each 
unit, ranging from 700 square feet up to 1350 square feet.  
 

03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 12 of 64



Commonwealth Heights (Arcadia) SIP 
Project File #SP13-52R 
 

 

Commissioner Carlson asked if these units were going to be rentals or 
condos.  Ms. Evans said the intent is that they will be condos for purchase 
and they are being designed as such.  She indicated that she can only 
represent the design and that the parent company makes the final 
decision regarding product type. She said this is one of the few buildings 
in the entire metro area that is being designed for condominiums. Mr. 
Hebert commented on the construction defect litigation issues and the 
attempts by DRCOG and the state legislature to address the issue, which 
seems to be putting a damper on condo projects.  Commissioner Carlson 
is pleased they are building to accommodate condos because she thinks 
there is a market for that kind of product.  Commissioner Carlson asked if 
there was an option to possibly share parking with Charles Schwab for 
overflow parking.  Mr. Hebert noted that while Charles Schwab owns the 
property to the north that is not a parcel they are developing right now. 
 
Commissioner Kirchner said he appreciates the comprehensive 
presentation and was complimentary about the design of the project.  He 
asked for clarification on the parking and how the non-controlled parking 
area would work. Ms. Evans described the parking reservation system, 
and how units are priced accordingly.   Commissioner Kirchner 
commended the applicant for consideration of condominiums given the 
environment of construction defect litigation.  He commended the 
applicant on the design of the project and indicated he likes look, scale 
and color of the project.  
 
Commissioner Mikolajczak said he was also glad to learn this was a 
condominium project. He asked for clarification about the reference to a 
visual transition between this project and the Charles Schwab campus to 
the north. Ms. Evans described the intent to provide a “professional” 
aesthetic that communicated architecturally with the surrounding area.  
Commissioner Mikolajczak asked how the retail might be used and would 
there be a restaurant.  Ms. Evans said it will more likely be a coffee and 
prepared sandwich shop and not a sit down restaurant.  Commissioner 
Mikolajczak applauded the applicant for that kind of dining opportunity and 
liked the idea of outdoor seating along an attractive streetscape. 
Commissioner Mikolajczak said he is a fan of downtown Denver and this 
is the best representation of that character and thinks the applicant has 
done an excellent job of designing the project.  He pointed out many of the 
architectural elements that he liked.  He asked about if a central tower 
feature on the north façade would make the building more attractive and 
had the applicant considered that.  Mr. Muller responded by showing the 
architectural renderings that show how you will see the building from the 
street and that increasing the façade at the location isn’t really necessary.  
He showed the corner elevation as an example.  Commissioner 
Mikolajczak thanked the applicant for that response.  
 

03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 13 of 64



Commonwealth Heights (Arcadia) SIP 
Project File #SP13-52R 
 

 

Vice-Chair Sippel asked if there is a potential restaurant, would there be 
enough parking.  Ms. Evans said it is more likely to be a coffee and 
sandwich place used by residents or people within walking distance. Vice-
Chair Sippel asked for a clarification on the material to be used on the 
RidgeGate Parkway landscape planters.  Mr. Muller described the 
integrally colored, pour-in-place concrete design.  Vice-Chair Sippel asked 
how durable the material will be in this climate.  Mr. Muller indicated that 
nothing is maintenance free but these materials will not fall off like a stone 
or tile and is quite a sturdy material.  Vice-Chair asked about the material 
for landscaped boxes.  The applicant indicated the material is concrete 
also and is durable. Vice-Chair Sippel asked about the various surface 
paver materials to be used.  Ms. Evans indicated they will be using the 
same pavers required by RidgeGate and how they will match that used 
along Commonwealth Street.  Ms. Evans described the various materials 
to be used that were displayed on the materials sample board.  Vice-Chair 
Sippel asked for a confirmation that the more “pinkish” materials were just 
accent pieces.  The applicant confirmed that to be true. 
 
Commissioner Steele said it was an attractive project. He reiterated 
concerns about on-street parking relative to snow removal.  Commissioner 
Steele said that he was concerned that sometime in the future there will 
be a conflict between the residential and the retail.  Ms. Evans indicated 
her experience has been that they will address the potential conflicts in 
their HOA or other related documents.  Commissioner Steele also 
reiterated his concerns about bike storage on the balconies of the units.  
Ms. Evans indicated that storage of items on balconies is something 
typically addressed in covenants. She noted that a common barbeque 
grill, seating and dining area is provided within the project for residents.  
 
Commissioner Mikolajczak moved to recommend approval to the City 
Council of the SIP as submitted subject to final approval by the City Public 
Works Department.  Commissioner Kirchner seconded.  The motion 
passed unanimously with 5 Commissioners present.  Commissioner 
Godden noted that he had a conflict of interest regarding the SIP and had 
excused himself, and Commissioner Sauder was absent. 

 
 
H. REFERRALS:    

 
Lone Tree Public Works Department comments will be addressed prior to 
final approval of the SIP, as is a standard condition of approval on all 
SIPs.  Otherwise, there were no major referral comments.  The RidgeGate 
West Village Community Association also responded with no comments 
on the application.   

  

03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 14 of 64



Commonwealth Heights (Arcadia) SIP 
Project File #SP13-52R 
 

 

I. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the SIP requirements 
of the Lone Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive 
Plan, and the RidgeGate Residential West Sub-Area Plan.   
 
Staff recommends approval of the SIP, subject to final approval by Public 
Works. 
 

END 
 

03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 15 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 16 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 17 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 18 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 19 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 20 of 64



Page 1 of 3 
 

City of Lone Tree 
Design Guidelines  

Statement of Design Intent
Using this form, or a separate page, please describe how the project meets the intent of the City of Lone Tree 
Design Guidelines, including the City’s Core Design Principles. (If the project is located within a Planned 
Development that is governed by additional design standards or guidelines, please address how the project 
satisfies the intent of those standards and guidelines as well).  

Please use the outline below as a guide in formulating your response. You may also use this opportunity to 
describe particular strengths, unique features, sustainable practices, or innovations that distinguish the design of 
the project, as well as any particular opportunities or challenges that should be considered. This Statement of 
Design Intent is intended to encourage thoughtful consideration of design guidelines and to give project 
reviewers and decision makers a more thorough understanding of the project.  

Project Name: Commonwealth Heights

Location: RidgeGate Pkwy, Commonwealth St, Bellwether and Halstead Lanes                       
              

     

1. Overall Design Concept:
Briefly describe the use and overall concept for the project as a whole.  

The Owner is requesting an amended SIP for a multi-family residential project designed and constructed
to accommodate condominium ownership consisting of 190 residential dwelling units on 3.25 acres. The 
property will have one, two and three bedroom units along with community amenities including pool, spa, 
fitness, pet spa, and storage. There will be limited ground floor retail/commercial uses available to the 
residents of this property and residents of the general area. The zoning is R/M-U. 

2. Context and Site:
Describe how the project relates functionally and visually to the context of the surrounding area (consider 
issues of form and character; the natural environment; vehicular and pedestrian access and circulation 
systems, etc.).

  
This property is the last development link along the south side of RidgeGate Parkway from the Target 
anchored shopping to Sky Ridge Hospital. This parcel defines infill property. The north side of the 
property fronts RidgeGate Parkway, a wide (4 lanes plus center turn lane), main thoroughfare. This 
development will create the transition from the expansive commercial Schwab campus to the lower 
density Belvedere townhouse community.

The design of the site allows residents to walk around as well as through the property. Residents have 
multiple pedestrian access points to the public rights of way. The mass and scale of the development fits 
well with the more urban street façades created along RidgeGate Parkway and Commonwealth Street. 
The development’s prominent amenity area with two story clear volume greets the planned signaled 
intersection of RidgeGate Parkway and Bellwether Lane. 

The site grades facilitate an articulated roof line adding interest and variation. The prominent placement of 
the amenity area and retail/commercial spaces along RidgeGate Parkway allows for a residential only 
section of the development compatible with the Belvedere community along the southwestern edges.

03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 21 of 64



 
Resident vehicles arrive and enter the site from both Bellwether Land and Commonwealth Street. By 
splitting the site vehicular traffic it will allow the traffic flows to more evenly disburse. Trash truck collection 
will occur from both Bellwether and Commonwealth. 
 
Retail and commercial visitor parking is handled both on site using a Shared Parking Analysis and on the 
perimeter streets. 
 
 

3. Public Realm 
 Describe how the project contributes to an inviting, safe and functional public realm (consider public 
 spaces, street/sidewalk – level experience, lighting, landscaping and signage).  
 

The development of this site provides the final connection in the pedestrian experience along RidgeGate 
Parkway. The project will be utilizing building lighting selected from the same collection as the enhanced 
street lighting along Commonwealth Street. The development will include pedestrian scale street lights 
along RidgeGate Parkway and Commonwealth Street and tall City of Lone Tree street lights at the two 
southern corners of the site. The site lighting will invite pedestrian uses in and around the site in the 
evening hours. The retail and commercial uses will create an active, pedestrian feel for this section of 
RidgeGate Parkway. 
  
The development of this property will add to residential options for the neighboring major employers-
Schwab, Sky Ridge Hospital,  Cabelas, just to name a few. These residences along with nearby 
developments achieve a critical density for the property and will locate new customers within easy walking 
and biking to nearby retail and commercial. This will also help alleviate added vehicle traffic. 
 
The size and scale of the project offers a sound barrier between the traffic noise generated on RidgeGate 
Parkway and the Belvedere townhouse community. 
 
The public sidewalks around the site are designed with hardscape and landscape details that vary as one 
travels around the site. The property includes an internal area for the use of our four legged friends to 
alleviate some of the strain on the public tree lawns. Open rail balconies will permit interaction from the 
resident to the pedestrian while the height of the balcony off the sidewalk affords the resident privacy and 
security. 
 
The retail and commercial uses will be easily accessible to Schwab and Sky Ridge Hospital employees 
and visitors who desire to obtain some fresh air during the day, an easy and quick walk to obtain a coffee 
or handle a quick errand. 

 
 

4. Architectural Design 
Describe how the architectural design contributes to the unique qualities of the area and how design 
concepts result in a unified, functional and high quality design (consider building form and composition, 
façade composition and articulation, materials and colors and lighting).  
 
The design drew inspiration from traditional brick buildings similar to those in Lower Downtown Denver.  
 
The project façade is designed with brick and stucco. A variety of brick colors and sizes are utilized to 
enhance the architecture and the pedestrian experience. The exterior colors include reds, greys and tans 
which are also colors reflected in the natural RidgeGate environment. The façade is expressed in different 
forms to appear as distinct buildings. The façade treatment has subtle variations on all four sides of the 
property.  
 

03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 22 of 64



Columns appear at the balcony corners, are expressed at specific façade locations and form the basis of 
the internal site vehicular entry points on both the east and west sides of the project. The parapet cornice 
throughout has a multi-layered dimension. The roof line is articulated with parapet and hipped elements to 
add interest and variety.  
 
The retail, pedestrian, amenity and vehicular entries have a rich burgundy metal canopy to highlight their 
locations. The Retail areas have expansive storefront windows and doors to engage the pedestrian. The 
exterior metal accents – railings, light fixtures and store front system will have match the color and finish 
of the specialty street lights on Commonwealth. 
 
All residential units are designed with large, outdoor patio or balcony spaces. The first floor along 
RidgeGate Parkway possesses the tallest ceiling heights so the façade can respond to the most visible 
street frontage. The corner residential units on the top floor have the tallest ceiling heights and floor to 
ceiling windows are repeated to connect with the first floor elevation. 
 

   
  

 
 

03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 23 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 24 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 25 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 26 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 27 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 28 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 29 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 30 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 31 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 32 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 33 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 34 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 35 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 36 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 37 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 38 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 39 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 40 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 41 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 42 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 43 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 44 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 45 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 46 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 47 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 48 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 49 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 50 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 51 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 52 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 53 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 54 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 55 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 56 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 57 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 58 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 59 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 60 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 61 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 62 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 63 of 64



03/04/14 City Council Packet Page 64 of 64


	2014-03-04 CC Agenda
	2014-03-04 CC Agenda
	2014-02-18 CC Minutes
	10f2 CWH CC Staff Report
	FROM: Steve Hebert, Community Development Director
	Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner
	DATE: February 26, 2014
	FOR:  March 4, 2014, City Council Meeting
	C. SITE CHARACTERISTICS:
	A Site Improvement Plan for the property was previously approved by City Council for 160 multi-family units (with 7,100 sq. ft. of retail below) in 2006, but that project was never constructed.  The building size proposed is comparable with that appro...
	This development has been reviewed and approved by the RidgeGate Design Review Committee (DRC).
	F. DESCRIPTION:
	The following has been taken directly from the minutes of the Planning Commission meeting held on February 11, 2014:
	Ms. Jennifer Drybread introduced the application as a request for approval of a Site Improvement Plan (SIP) for a four-story multi-family residential building consisting of 190 multi-family units and 8,210 square feet of ground floor retail on 3.25 a...
	I. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION:
	Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the SIP requirements of the Lone Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive Plan, and the RidgeGate Residential West Sub-Area Plan.
	Staff recommends approval of the SIP, subject to final approval by Public Works.
	END

	20f2 CHA FAI complete-red
	2 of 7   CH - Planning Commission Report
	FROM: Steve Hebert, Community Development Director
	Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner
	DATE: February 4, 2014
	FOR:  February 11, 2014 Planning Commission Meeting
	C. SITE CHARACTERISTICS:
	A Site Improvement Plan for the property was previously approved by the City for multi-family development (with retail below) in 2006, but that project was never constructed.
	This development has been reviewed and approved by the RidgeGate Design Review Committee (DRC).
	F. DESCRIPTION:
	H. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION:
	Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the SIP requirements of the Lone Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive Plan, and the RidgeGate Residential West Sub-Area Plan.
	Staff recommends the Planning Commission recommend approval of the SIP to City Council, subject to final approval by Public Works.
	END

	3 of  7  Narrative 02 02 2014 SIP
	5 of  7  Referral Responses-red
	6a of  7 SIP 1-12
	6b of 7 13-24
	7 of 7  SIP Part 2 color elev and renderings-red




